

AMELIA YOUTH ATHLETIC CLUB

BYLAWS

ARTICLE I

NAME, PURPOSE AND POLICY

SECTION 1: NAME

This Organization shall be known as the Amelia Youth Athletic Club, a non profit Ohio corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Club”).

SECTION 2: PURPOSE

(A) To unite the coaches and other qualified persons of the Amelia High School, West Clermont, School District, for their mutual moral and social advancement, to improve the condition of the youth programs, to cooperate with other organizations for the good of the program and to advance sound principles in concert with other organizations and athletic clubs;

(B) To encourage all interested youth and adults in the area to participate in organized sports, youth football, cheerleading, AAU basketball, AABC baseball, AAU wrestling, AAU boxing, AAU swimming, AAU soccer, AAU track and field, and related activities;

(C) To develop an appreciation for physical fitness, sportsmanship, and competitive spirit; and

(D) To stress the importance of safety in all activities as being paramount.

SECTION 3: POLICY

(A) It shall be the policy of the Club to conduct its activities so that the physical and moral welfare of the youth, for whose primary benefit it is organized, shall remain paramount, and all matters of policy shall be determined on that basis;

(B) The Club is not formed for the pecuniary gain or profit of, and no part of the net earnings of the Club shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to, its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons; provided, that the Club may pay reasonable compensation for services rendered, make payments and distributions in furtherance of its purposes, and distribute its assets on dissolution in accordance with these By-Laws. No substantial part of the activities of the Club shall be carrying on propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation. The Club shall not participate or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws, the Club shall not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on by a Club described in section 501 (c) (3) and exempt from taxation under section 501

(a) of the Code, or by a corporation contributions to which are deductible under section 170 (c) of the Code;

(C) In order to secure suitable and adequate financial backing to carry out the purpose of the Club, it shall be the policy of the Club to permit only such sponsorship as is consistent with the purpose for which the Club is organized and to select sponsors who are interested in the Club solely or principally as a means of contributing to the welfare of youth; and

(D) It shall be the policy of the Club that any income received or assets owned, leased or otherwise used by the Club shall be applied only towards the non-profit purposes and objectives for which the Club has been organized.

ARTICLE II

MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1: ELIGIBILITY

To be eligible for membership in the Club, an applicant must:

(A) Pledge that he or she is willing to work from time to time based on his or her availability for the promotion of the Club, pledge that he or she will participate in fund raising on behalf of the Club at such times and in such manner as may be requested by the Club, be of good moral character and be at least eighteen years of age;

(B) Reside in the West Clermont School District, or who has a child who attends or is eligible to attend a school in the West Clermont School District; and

(C) If such applicant has a child desiring to participate in an organized sport sponsored by the Club, executes the annual registration form prepared by the Club, as modified from time to time, and agrees to be bound by the terms contained therein.

SECTION 2: QUALIFIED APPLICANTS

All eligible applicants shall be admitted as members of the Club upon (i) execution of a pledge certifying such applicant shall fulfill the requirements stated in Section 1(A) above; (ii) execution of the annual registration form if such applicant has a child desiring to participate in an organized sport sponsored by the Club; and (iii) upon payment of any applicable registration fees.

SECTION 3: GOOD STANDING

A member shall be in good standing if:

(A) The member has paid their annual applicable registration fees and deposits, if any, at such times and in such amounts as prescribed by the Board of Trustees; and

(B) The member adheres and abides by the Club's Bylaws and any policies and/or regulations implemented pursuant thereto.

SECTION 4: SUSPENSION FOR INDEBTEDNESS

A member owing registration fees, deposits or any other monies, or failing to return equipment to the Club, within the deadlines established by the Board of Trustees shall be automatically suspended from membership without notice of any kind. A suspended member is denied all rights and privileges. Such a suspended member may be reinstated as a member in good standing, at the discretion of the President, upon payment of his or her indebtedness.

SECTION 5: REPORTS OF INDEBTEDNESS

The Vice-President shall notify the President and Vice-President of each sport whenever a member becomes indebted to the Club for any reason (sign-up applicable fees, applicable dues, fund-raising monies, etc.).

SECTION 6: VOTING MEMBERS

(A) All members in good standing shall have the right to vote on any matter, except the election of officers and trustees. The right to vote for officers and trustees shall be limited to those members in good standing who have, during the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the monthly or special meeting in which officers and trustees are to be elected, attended at least six (6) general monthly meetings. In the event a member in good standing did not attend at least six (6) general monthly meetings during the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the monthly or special meeting in which officers and trustees are to be elected, the President of the Club shall have the authority, in his or her absolute sole discretion, to award such member an attendance in exchange for a work detail.

(B) Voting through proxies shall be an acceptable means of voting; provided such proxy is in writing (email form is acceptable) and is delivered prior to or at the beginning of the meeting where such proxy shall be used, to either the President, Vice-President or Vice-President of any sport and; further provided, such proxy shall have no effect unless the officer to whom the proxy was delivered shall be present at the meeting where such proxy shall be used with the proxy in hand.

ARTICLE III

MEETINGS

SECTION 1: TIME OF MEETING

The Club shall meet once a month at such a time and place as the President shall, from time to time, direct.

SECTION 2: ORDER OF BUSINESS

- (A) Roll call to determine presence of officers and trustees and to determine if a quorum is present.
- (B) Reading of the minutes of the previous meeting.
- (C) Treasurer's report.
- (D) Correspondence and bills, and action thereof.
- (E) Report of committees.
- (F) Unfinished business.
- (G) New business.
- (H) Appointment of committees and members thereto; no member shall be exempt from being called to serve upon a committee unless excused by the chairman. No member shall be compelled to serve on two (2) committees at the same time.
- (I) Adjournment.

Robert Rules of Order shall prevail. The President, or the presiding officer if not the President, shall have the right to modify the order of business at any meeting to the extent necessary to accomplish the purposes thereof.

SECTION 3: SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings shall be called by the President upon verbal or written request of three (3) voting members in good standing or by a majority vote of the membership. Each member of the Club shall be notified by the secretary, using reasonable efforts, of the time and place of the Special Meeting and the reason for which it is called. At the Special Meeting the business for which the Special Meeting is called has precedence over all other business.

SECTION 4: QUORUM

Eight (8) members in good standing and eligible to vote at the applicable meeting shall constitute a quorum.

SECTION 5: RULES OF ORDER

- (A) The President or the Vice-President shall call the meeting to order. In their absence, the Secretary shall appoint a temporary Chairman.
- (B) Each member shall take a seat as soon as the meeting is called to order.

(C) Strict decorum shall be preserved. Improper language and personal matters or remarks shall not be allowed.

(D) When two (2) members or more rise to speak at the same time, the chair shall name the member to rise.

(E) If a member is called to order while speaking, he or she shall cease to speak until the point of order is decided by the President.

(F) There shall be no debate allowed on a point of order, but a member may appeal the decision by the chair.

(G) A member making such an appeal shall state his or her reason for doing so and the chair shall state the grounds for the decision. No other debate shall be allowed on this appeal.

(H) No motion shall be debatable until seconded and stated by the chair.

(I) The mover of the motion shall have the liberty to accept any amendment thereto.

(J) When a question is before the meeting, no motion shall be in order except to lay on the table, to correct or question, to postpone for a certain time, to correct or amend. All motions shall have precedence in the order in which they are herein mentioned.

(K) If the chair request it, a motion shall be reduced to writing and be signed by the mover and seconder.

(L) The presiding officer shall not speak on any subject unless he or she retires from the chair, except on points of order. In case of a tie, the President, or presiding officer, shall have the deciding vote.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS AND THEIR ELECTION

SECTION 1: OFFICERS

The officers of the Club shall be President, Vice-President of the Club, a Vice-President of each respective sport, Secretary, Treasurer, Public Relations Representative and such other officers as determined by a majority vote of the voting members.

SECTION 2: ELIGIBILITY FOR OFFICE

(A) Anyone who is a member of the Club is eligible for elective office, provided that he or she is in good standing and is eligible to vote for officers and trustees. The offices of President, Vice-President and Treasurer may not be held simultaneously by a husband and wife

or their relatives meaning parents, siblings, father or mother-in-laws and brother or sister-in-laws.

(B) If at any time candidates for any office cannot be found under the foregoing eligibility requirements, then the eligibility rule may be waived by the Election Committee.

SECTION 3: TERM OF OFFICE

All officers shall be elected for a two (2) year term. The President shall not hold office for more than two (2) consecutive terms; provided however, such President may hold office for more than two (2) consecutive terms if he or she is nominated for an additional term and such President is unopposed for such election.

SECTION 4: ELECTION PROCEDURE

(A) Nomination of officers shall be at the November meeting and voted on at the December meeting. Prior to the elections and nominations, an Election Committee shall be appointed by the President consisting of at least three (3) members in good standing not running for office. Prior to the nomination meeting, the Secretary shall furnish the President with a list of those members who are eligible to be nominated for office. The Election Committee shall be charged with the limited responsibility of supervising balloting and counting. The vote for all officers shall be by voting members present at the meeting by secret ballot prepared by the Election Committee.

(B) Any member in good standing may place a nomination in an open meeting. Candidates must be present at the time of the meeting to be nominated or submit a signed statement of acceptance of the nomination.

(C) Nominations from the floor shall be handled as follows:

- (a) Nominations do not require a second.
- (b) Nominations are in order as soon as the chair calls for them.
- (c) As a nomination is made, the chair repeats it and the Secretary records it.
- (d) No member may nominate more than one (1) candidate per office.
- (e) When there are no further nominations, the chair may declare the nominations closed.
- (f) A motion to close the nominations requires a majority vote of the voting members.

(g) Prior to the voting, but following the formal closing of the nominations, nominations may be reopened by a motion, which requires only a majority vote of the voting members to carry.

(D) At least ten (10) days prior to the nomination and election meetings, notice shall be mailed, emailed or phoned to the address of record for all members in good standing. This notice shall set the date, time and location of the nomination and election meeting and the offices to be filled, or in the event of a tie, the same information for a run-off election. Alternatively, such notice may either be posted on the Club's website or stated on the Club's newsletter.

(E) After the nominations are formally closed, the voting members eligible to vote for officers and trustees shall proceed to vote upon the names. The election shall be by secret ballot and it shall be the duty of the Election Committee to provide safeguards for the honest and fair conduct of such elections. Votes in the name of a person not nominated shall not be counted. The candidate for each office who receives a plurality of the votes cast shall be declared elected. If requested or in the event of a tie, the count will be made verbally by the Election Committee.

SECTION 5: INSTALLATION

Installation of the officers shall be held at the January meeting after the unfinished business report.

SECTION 6: SURRENDER OF PROPERTY

All retiring officers shall deliver into the hands of such new officers, within two (2) weeks time, all movies, books, papers and any other organization properties pertaining to their offices. Any member failing to comply with this Section shall be subject to a fine and expulsion.

SECTION 7: REMOVAL

Any officer may be removed by a two-thirds ($2/3^{\text{rds}}$) majority vote of the voting members entitled to elect officers and trustees, whether for cause or not for cause at a regular meeting, or special meeting held for that purpose. The officer who is being voted on for removal shall not be present at the meeting and shall not be entitled to vote on the matter. In addition, in the event an officer either misses three consecutive regular monthly meetings without such absences being approved by the President or five regular meetings during the calendar year without such absences being approved by the President, such officer shall automatically be removed as an officer of the Club.

SECTION 8: VACANCIES

If a vacancy caused by death, resignation, leave of absence approved by the Board of Trustees, disqualification or removal from office or any other reason should occur in the office of Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer or any other office more than six (6) months prior to the expiration of the term of office, an election shall be held at the earliest possible date in conformance with the Bylaws to elect a successor. Until a successor is elected, the President

shall have the power to make a temporary appointment to fill the vacancy. If a vacancy in such office occurs within six (6) months of expiration of the term of office, the President shall appoint such successor. In the event of a vacancy in the office of President, the Vice-President shall assume the above responsibilities. If a member in good standing has taken an approved leave of absence, such member can return and fulfill his or her term if the office has not been filled in his or her absence.

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS DUTIES AND LIMITATIONS

SECTION 1: PRESIDENT

The President shall:

(A) Preside at all meetings of the general membership and attend meetings of the Trustee Committee.

(B) Open all meetings by taking the chair and calling the members to order.

(C) Announce the business that is to be discussed and the order in which it is to be acted upon.

(D) Recognize or give the floor to members wishing to speak to the assembly.

(E) State all motions or questions which are raised during the course of the meeting, open the floor for discussion, place matters to vote and announce the results of the vote.

(F) Refrain from voting on any matter, unless the assembly has reached a tie vote. Once a tie vote has been established, the President should either table the motion for another meeting or break the tie with a vote that, in his opinion, will best serve the Club.

(G) Refuse to allow frivolous, dilatory, or inflammatory motions that annoy or disrupt the assembly.

(H) Refrain members engaged in heated debate.

(I) Refrain from entering into debate unless agreed upon by the majority of the voting members in attendance.

(J) Give his or her complete attention to any member who has been given the floor.

(K) Be a member in fact of all committees, although attendance at all committee meetings is not mandatory.

(L) Make appointments as authorized by the Bylaws.

(M) Refrain from interrupting proceedings such as motions, debate, discussions, voting, etc., unless the Rules of Order or these Bylaws have been violated or abused (in his or her judgement).

(N) Be non-partisan, chosen for his or her ability to preside, a person of tact, common sense and self-control, familiar with the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws and Rules of Order.

(O) Give general oversight to the day to day operations of the Club.

(P) Have the right to fine, suspend or expel any member, officer and/or trustee; but shall not fine, suspend or expel any trustee who is the President, Vice-President or Secretary of the Booster's Club of Amelia High School.

(Q) Shall have the general management of the affairs of the Club, shall have all the powers and perform all the duties usually incident to the office of President, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be assigned by the majority vote of the voting members.

SECTION 2: VICE-PRESIDENT

The Vice-President shall:

(A) Chair the meeting if and when a motion is made in reference to the President or his or her performance.

(B) Assume the duties of the President during his or her absence from a meeting or if unable to perform his or her duties for as long as he or she is unavailable or unable to perform those duties. In the event the President has been removed from office by the Board of Trustees, has resigned or is deceased, the Vice-President shall become the President for the remainder of the unexpired term, and a new Vice-President shall be elected by a majority vote of those members eligible to vote for officers and trustees.

(C) Serve as chair of the Board of Trustees.

(D) Investigate matters of members' indebtedness to the Club and make recommendations to the President.

(E) Be willing to assume the responsibility of the President and thereby be non-partisan, able to preside and be a person with tact, common sense and self control, familiar with the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws and Rules of Order.

SECTION 3: SPORT VICE-PRESIDENTS

There shall be the office of Vice-President for each sport. The Vice-President of each sport (football, cheerleading, basketball, wrestling, baseball, etc...) shall:

- (A) Coordinate player sign-ups with the Secretary and Treasurer.
- (B) Appoint and/or remove both head and assistant team coaches.
- (C) Set up team/squads for his or her individual sport.
- (D) Assist the head coaches of their respective sport.
- (E) Be in charge of the Club's uniforms and equipment and distribution of the same for their respective sport, both during the season and in the off season.
- (F) Serve as chair of their respective sport.
- (G) Be in charge of establishing instructional guidelines and/or programs for their respective sport.
- (H) Be responsible for the day to day operations of their respective sport.
- (I) Appoint an Assistant Vice-President with full authority as if such Assistant Vice-President was the Vice-President of the respective sport; provided however such authority shall be subservient to that of the Vice-President who appointed such Assistant Vice-President.

SECTION 4: SECRETARY

The Secretary shall:

- (A) Be custodian of the records of the Club, meeting minutes and correspondence.
- (B) Obtain a roll call of the members present at any and all meetings and record the minutes of all meetings of the general membership and the Board of Trustees reducing the verbal into a concise written report of the important facts such as the affirmative or negative results. Discussion leading to the vote would not be recorded.
- (C) Read the minutes of the prior general membership meeting at each meeting.
- (D) Read the minutes of any special membership meeting or meeting of the Board of Trustees at the conclusion of that meeting.
- (E) Record all amendments to the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws and Rules of Order.
- (F) Maintain for the President an order of business for each meeting to keep him or her informed of correspondence and unfinished business that should be brought forward at the meeting.

(G) Maintain records of standing and special committees and their representatives and their reports as stated at any meeting.

(H) Be willing and able to keep records in a neat and orderly fashion.

(I) Be responsible for all typing and mailing of Club correspondence and calling and informing all members for meetings: Board of Trustees, Special Meetings and General Meetings.

(J) Organize and take care of all sign-ups and keep all records pertaining to sign-ups for players.

SECTION 5: TREASURER

The Treasurer shall:

(A) Be in charge of all raffles, sales, etc. for the Club.

(B) Take over the Secretary's duties in his or her absence.

(C) Establish and maintain account(s) in the name of the Club in a recognized banking institution with the signature of the President, Vice-President and Treasurer on file and noted that all checks written in excess of Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00) shall be signed by two (2) of the following: President, Vice-President and Treasurer.

(D) Maintain adequate records so that income and expenditures may be categorized and thereby reports made relative to special interest areas.

(E) Provide written and verbal reports at each regularly scheduled meeting and be prepared to report verbally at a special meeting.

(F) Be willing to accept the responsibility for handling money, be skilled in basic booking procedures, a person worthy of trust and qualified to be bonded.

(G) The Treasurer may be bonded for a minimum sum of \$2,000.00.

(H) Take care of all billing for the sign-ups and sales of the Club and furnish the Secretary with the information.

SECTION 6: PUBLIC RELATIONS

The Public Relations Representative shall:

(A) Take care of setting up the year book.

(B) Be responsible for all advertising for the Club regarding special events and promotions of the program to the public to it's fullest.

(C) Attend all league meetings of his or her sport.

(D) Be responsible for compiling and distributing the Club newsletter.

SECTION 7: RESIGNATION

Any officer may resign as such at any time by giving written notice (e-mail is acceptable written notice) to any Trustee, the President or Vice-President of the Club, who in turn must immediately notify the remaining officers and trustees of such resignation. Unless otherwise stated in the resignation, such resignation shall be effective at 6:00 p.m. the following day.

ARTICLE VI

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

SECTION 1: POWER OF TRUSTEES.

The authority of the Board of Trustees shall be limited to the authority granted pursuant to these Bylaws and any authority granted the Trustees pursuant to a special resolution by a two thirds majority vote of the voting members. The Trustees shall exist to give general oversight and counsel to the affairs of the Club. The Trustees shall not be involved in the day to day operations of the Club.

SECTION 2: NUMBER

The number of Trustees of the Club shall be seven (7) consisting of (i) the Vice-President of the Club (ii) the President, Vice-President and Secretary of the Booster's Club of Amelia High School, and (iii) three (3) voting members of the Club elected as provided below. Thereafter, the number of Trustees shall not be fewer than three (3) nor more than seven (7), as may be determined from time to time by a majority vote of the voting members eligible to elect trustees and officers. The Vice-President of the Club shall be the chair of the Trustees.

SECTION 3: ELIGIBILITY, TERM, ELECTION PROCEDURE AND INSTALLATION

The Eligibility, Term, Election Procedure and Installation rules and procedures for the three (3) elected trustees shall be identical to those rules and procedures delineated above in Article IV for Officers of the Club.

SECTION 4: MEETINGS

Except for the Trustees from the Booster's Club, all members of the Board of Trustees shall attend the regular monthly meetings of the Club as described in Article III, above. However, all the Trustees shall meet at least twice per year to review the general affairs of the

Club and discuss any other matters presented to the Trustees. In addition, the Trustees may meet in closed confidential meetings as required. In the event a meeting of the Board of Trustees is called to discuss a conflict involving a Trustee, such Trustee shall remove himself or herself from such meeting.

SECTION 5: REMOVAL

Any member of the Board of Trustees may be removed by a two thirds (2/3rds) majority vote of the voting members eligible to elect such Trustees, whether for cause or not for cause at a regular meeting, or special meeting held for that purpose. The Trustee who is being voted on for removal shall not be present at the meeting and shall not be entitled to vote on the matter.

SECTION 6: VACANCIES

If a vacancy caused by death, resignation, disqualification or removal from office or any other reason should occur more than six (6) months prior to the expiration of the term of office, an election shall be held at the earliest possible date in conformance with the Bylaws to elect a successor. Until a successor is elected, the President shall have the power to make a temporary appointment to fill the vacancy. If a vacancy in such office occurs within six (6) months of expiration of the term of office, the Trustees, by a majority vote, shall appoint a successor Trustee to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term.

SECTION 7: COMPENSATION

Neither Trustees nor officers shall receive any payment for their services, provided that nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any Trustee from serving the Club.

SECTION 8: RESIGNATION

Any Trustee may resign as such at any time by giving written notice to the President or Vice-President of the Club. Such resignation shall be effective at 6:00 p.m. the following day.

ARTICLE VII

SPORT COMMITTEE

SECTION 1: GOVERNANCE

The Club shall have a sports committee consisting of the Vice-Presidents of each respective sport. The President of the Club shall be the chair of the sports committee and shall be entitled to vote in the event of a tie vote among the Vice-Presidents. The sports committee shall have the authority granted it pursuant to these Bylaws.

ARTICLE VIII

CLUB FINANCES

SECTION 1: DONATIONS

Whenever there is a request for donations from the Club, the request shall be referred to the President of the Club, who shall investigate the matter and recommend acceptance, or rejection or modification to the Club. A majority vote of the members eligible to vote for officers and trustees shall control. No donation for any reason whatsoever shall be made unless the aforesaid procedure has been followed.

SECTION 2: FUND RAISING

Any particular sport or team may raise funds for the benefit of such sport or team provided: (i) such fund raising is performed with the prior approval of the Vice-President of the applicable sport; (ii) the funds raised are used in such a manner as not to jeopardize the non profit tax exempt status of the Club; (iii) the fund raising activity does not in any manner conflict with any fund raising activities sponsored by the Club; and (iv) the head coach of the team raising the funds submits to the Treasurer of the Club a detailed written report evidencing, among other things as may be required by the Treasurer, the sources and uses of all funds raised. The Treasurer shall have custody of any funds raised by such particular sport or team.

SECTION 3: AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

The Treasurer shall have the books and accounts of the Club audited at least every other calendar year by an independent CPA using generally accepted accounting principles.

ARTICLE IX

RULES AND PENALTIES

SECTION 1: DISORDERLY MEMBERS

Any member creating a disturbance during either a general or special meeting or other Club function, shall be required to leave as directed by either the President, Vice-President or Vice-President of each respective sport, or in the absence of same, by any officer of the Club. Any member creating a disturbance during a sporting event, shall be required to leave as directed by any officer of the Club or any head coach present at such sporting event. If such member fails to heed such a request, the member shall be subject to expulsion, suspension or fine.

SECTION 2: SECRECY OF BUSINESS

Members of the Club shall not discuss any of the Club's business, which has been deemed confidential by the Trustees, the President, the Vice-President or Vice-President of each

respective sport, with outside persons. Any member violating this section shall be subject to expulsion, suspension or fine, as directed by the President.

SECTION 3: CHARGES AGAINST MEMBERS

Any charges against any member, who is not a coach or a parent of a player, shall be submitted in writing to the President who will review said charges and take the necessary action. The member may appeal such action taken to the sports committee. The decision of the sports committee shall be final, binding and conclusive.

SECTION 4: CHARGES AGAINST COACHES/PARENTS

Any charges against any coaches and/or parents of players shall be submitted in writing to the Vice-President of the particular sport wherein the coach coaches or the parent's child plays. If the Vice-President is unable to resolve the charge, such charge shall be submitted in writing to the President who will review said charges and take the necessary action. The member may appeal such action taken to the sports committee. The decision of the sports committee shall be final, binding and conclusive.

ARTICLE IX

COACHES

All coaches shall:

(A) Execute a "Coaches Code of Conduct" in the form prescribed by the Vice-President of their respective sport.

(B) Submit to, and pay for, background checks as requested by the Vice-President of their respective sport.

(C) Have no authority to incur any debts or expenses on behalf of the Club.

(D) During the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the first day of practice in any calendar year attend at least six (6) general monthly meetings; provided however this requirement may be waived by the Vice-President of the particular sport in the event it is the coach's first year to coach the particular sport. In the event a coach did not attend at least six (6) general monthly meetings during the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the first day of practice in any calendar year, the Vice-President of the particular sport shall have the authority, in his or her absolute sole discretion, to award such coach an attendance in exchange for a work detail.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENT OF THE BYLAWS

SECTION 1: *PROCEDURE*

These Bylaws shall not be altered or amended or repealed unless adopted by a two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of the voting members in good standings present at the meeting.

SECTION 2: *EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE BYLAWS*

These Bylaws shall take effect the first month following the date of final approval. All the Club's laws, resolutions or parts thereof in conflict with these Bylaws are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3: *REVIEW OF THE BYLAWS*

The Bylaws Committee consisting of three (3) members in good standing shall be appointed by the President to give consideration to the necessary revisions of these Bylaws.